
3































1 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
Inter-Office Communication 

DATE: April 26, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairman, Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Amy Pechacek, Director, Risk Management 

SUBJECT: Five Year Analysis of the Behavioral Health Division’s Workers’ 
Compensation Claims (INFORMATIONAL ONLY) 

INTRODUCTION 
The basic principles of risk management consist of identifying all organizational 
exposures, analyzing these risks, controlling liabilities through a risk mitigation plan, and 
continually monitoring the plan for effectiveness. This report and the associated 
presentation is a high-level review of the past five years of the Behavioral Health 
Division’s (BHD) workers’ compensation claims. Several frequency and severity 
measures are displayed to demonstrate the financial impact of these claims, along with 
the corresponding liability reduction and employee safety plans.  

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
Workers’ compensation claims are statutory wage and medical benefits for employees 
to compensate for injuries that occur in the course and scope of their employment. 
Historically high claim averages in Milwaukee County presented an opportunity for 
improvement in both frequency and severity measures and resulted in a new workers’ 
compensation program implementation by Risk Management in 2014. Transitioning the 
model of claims handling from self-administration to a third party administrator in 
November of 2014 resulted in the introduction of new resources for County employees 
such as the Milwaukee County Care Line, a twenty-four hour dedicated triage nurse to 
assist employees in their recovery, and transitional work options to encourage 
employee engagement post injury. This new program transition also resulted in industry 
appropriate claim tracking methods which reduced the prior data classification 
anomalies. Risk Management’s other major focus during this time was to increase the 
safety of employees by rolling out extensive updated safety policies, expanding OSHA 
training, and rejuvenating the Milwaukee County Joint Safety Committee, the combined 
impact of which has greatly improved frequency and severity measures for workers’ 
compensation claims from 2015 through the present.  

4



2 

 

BHD also helped reduce division specific losses by implementing new programs 
including authoring a new employee handbook in 2015, which clearly defined workplace 
expectations and policies, and investing significantly in leadership development. New 
service models, such as the assignment of acute staff to a dedicated unit, has increased 
employee accountability and closer manager oversight. In addition, a focus on training 
to safety policies and procedures and the revitalization of internal BHD incident analysis 
over the past several years has shifted the culture of injury management from reactive 
to proactive, and renewed BHD’s commitment to ensuring our employees are working 
safely. Also likely contributing to the decreasing claim trend has been a reduction in 
staffing and services offered, such as the closing of the Hilltop Unit.  
 
 
The loss leader departments in workers’ compensation claims County-wide are as 
expected given the nature of departmental functions, with Behavioral Health leading in 
the total number of claims filed between 2013 – 2017 and the Sheriff’s Department 
leading in the highest expenses associated with their injury claims from this same time 
period. The Parks, House of Correction, Airport, and Highway also make the list of 
departments with higher claim volume and expense. The top claim driver throughout the 
County is the insurance industry code designation of “muscle strains” which represent 
24% of all claim types filed and roughly 38% of the total expenses incurred. 
 
 
As a division, BHD averaged 202 claims with a total incurred cost of $890,167 annually 
between 2013 – 2014. Most notable is the drastic decrease in frequency and severity 
measures in 2015, wherein BHD recorded only 39 claims with a total incurred cost of 
$329,033. This represents an 81% decrease in frequency measures and a 63% 
decrease in severity when compared to the immediately preceding two years.  BHD has 
been able to sustain this reduction through 2017.  On average, the department has 
recorded 32 claims with a total incurred cost of $409,142 between 2016-2017. These 
two years are still developing and could fluctuate as the data continues to mature, but 
include reserve estimates to bring the claims to full conclusion. The most common claim 
causes represented between the years 2013 - 2017 is “struck by” and “altercation”, 
codes that typically denote an injury resulting from an encounter with a patient. These 
two claim cause categories accounted for 47% of all workers’ compensation claims filed 
at BHD, and 45% of the total incurred. 
 
 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION RECOMMENDATIONS 
Risk Management has drilled down on specific exposure data for workers’ 
compensation claims at the departmental level and authored individualized loss 
reduction plans based on the departments’ claims history and operations. These plans 
contain performance measures and risk management goals along with tailored training 
to be followed up by claims meetings between the department and Risk Management. A 
focus on strategic partnerships and accountability through incentives, resource 
allocation, and training will continue to decrease liabilities and improve positive 



3 

 

organizational behaviors to ensure the safety of our workforce and the success of 
effective long-term risk management for Milwaukee County.  It is recommended that an 
annual presentation on the County’s claims and liabilities be presented to the County 
Executive, the Judiciary, Safety, and General Services Committee, and the Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board to monitor progress and positive gains.  
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 _____________________________________________ 
Amy Pechacek, Director, Risk Management  
 
 
 
CC:  Chris Abele, County Executive 
 Raisa Koltun, Chief of Staff, County Executive’s Office  
 Teig Whaley-Smith, Director of Administrative Services 
 Mary Jo Meyers, Director of Health and Human Services 
 Mike Lappen, Director of Behavioral Health Division  



Risk Management

Milwaukee County

BHD WC Review
Amy C. Pechacek - Director, Risk Management



Risk Management

Principles of Risk Management

1. Identify exposures

2. Analyze losses

3. Develop plan to minimize

4. Monitor and adjust plan

• Performance measures:

A. Frequency of claims (#)

B. Severity of claims ($)

C. OSHA compliance



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation

• Statutory wage and medical benefit for individuals 

injured in the course and scope of their 

employment

• Milwaukee County has approx. 5,000 employees 

in WC program

• Historically the highest claim exposure impacting 

the County



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - Countywide

Claim Frequency

Claim Frequency  |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count

2013 753

2014 628

2015 248

2016 281

2017 263

TOTAL 2173

753

628

248

281
263

0

200

400

600

800

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Claim Frequency | 2013 - 2017

Claim Count



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - Countywide

Claim Financial Summary

Claim Financial Summary  |  2013 - 2017

Total Paid Total Incurred

2013 $6,069,132 $6,217,877

2014 $4,826,195 $5,187,923

2015 $2,101,090 $2,250,976

2016 $3,174,440 $3,548,485

2017 $996,515 $1,628,222

TOTAL $17,167,372 $18,833,483

0

1,750,000

3,500,000

5,250,000

7,000,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Claim Financial Summary | 2013 - 2017

Total Paid

Total Incurred



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - Countywide

Claim Frequency & Severity by Department

Claim Frequency & Severity by Department | 2013 - 2017

Claim Count Total Incurred

BHD 505 $2,927,652

Sheriff 472 $5,974,715

Parks 291 $2,052,170

House of Corrections 178 $1,714,107

DOT - Airport 147 $1,756,431

DOT - Highway Maintenance 133 $1,027,481

DHHS 107 $1,464,676

Zoo 93 $353,660

DOT - Fleet Management 40 $232,421

District Attorney 35 $197,229

Facilities 31 $200,646

All Others (26) 141 $932,295

TOTAL 2173 $18,833,483



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - Countywide

Top Claim Frequency & Severity Accident Types

Top 5 Most Frequent Accident Types |  2013 - 2017

Total Incurred Total Incurred

Strain 531 $7,186,986

Struck By 292 $1,119,790

Slip, Trip or Fall 182 $2,136,768

Altercation 170 $2,013,575

Laceration 107 $276,609

Top 5 Most Severe Accident Types |  2013 - 2017

Total Incurred Claim Count

Strain $7,186,986 531

Slip, Trip or Fall $2,136,768 182

Altercation $2,013,575 170

Motor Vehicle Accident $1,916,107 75

Struck By $1,119,790 85



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Claim Frequency

Claim Frequency  |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count

2013 216

2014 187

2015 39

2016 31

2017 32

TOTAL 505

0

55

110

165

220

275

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Claim Frequency | 2013 - 2017

Claim Count



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Claim Financial Summary

Claim Financial Summary  |  2013 - 2017

Total Paid Total Incurred

2013 $693,784 $784,213

2014 $856,295 $996,121

2015 $303,040 $329,033

2016 $451,011 $503,540

2017 $235,231 $314,744

TOTAL $2,539,361 $2,927,652

0

250,000

500,000

750,000

1,000,000

1,250,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Claim Financial Summary | 2013 - 2017

Total Paid

Total Incurred



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Claim Frequency & Severity by Claim Type

Claim Frequency & Severity by Claim Type |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count Total Incurred

WCIN - Medical & Lost Time 104 $2,480,299

WCMO - Medical Only 197 $447,353

WCIO 204 $0

TOTAL 505 $2,927,652

0% 23% 45% 68% 90%

WCIN - Medical & Lost Time

WCMO - Medical Only

WCIO - Incident Only

Claim Frequency & Severity by Claim Identifiers | 2013 - 2017

Claim Count

Total Incurred



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Frequency: Top 5 Divisions

Frequency: Top 5 Divisions |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count Total Incurred

Acute Adult Inpatient Unit 209 $1,474,034

Rehabilitation Hilltop 105 $427,068

Rehabilitation IMD 67 $251,811

Child & Adolescent Inpatient Unit 33 $76,017

Psychiatric Crisis Services 23 $69,612

0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Acute Adult Inpatient Unit

Rehabilitation Hilltop

Rehabilitation IMD

Child & Adolescent Inpatient Unit

Psychiatric Crisis Services

Frequency: Top 5 Divisions |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count

Total Incurred



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Severity: Top 5 Divisions

Severity: Top 5 Divisions |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count Total Incurred

Acute Adult Inpatient Unit 209 $1,474,034

Rehabilitation Hilltop 105 $427,068

Psychiatric Administration 1 $290,565

Rehabilitation IMD 67 $251,811

Housekeeping 6 $113,313

0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Acute Adult Inpatient Unit

Rehabilitation Hilltop

Psychiatric Administration

Rehabilitation IMD

Housekeeping

Severity: Top 5 Divisions |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count

Total Incurred



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Top 5 Most Severe Accidents Types

Top 5 Most Severe Accident Types |  2013 - 2017

Claim Count Total Incurred

Altercation 102 $1,161,015

Slip, Trip or Fall 29 $690,595

Strain 68 $583,427

Struck By 134 $166,272

Fall Same Level 17 $84,965

0 0 0 0 0 1

Altercation

Slip, Trip or Fall

Strain

Struck By

Fall Same Level

Top 5 Most Severe Accident types | 2013 - 2017

Claim Count

Total Incurred



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation - BHD

Experience Modification Factor

BHD Experience Modification Factor: .96

Minimum Mod: .38

Controllable Mod: .58

The Minimum Mod is your payroll information multiplied by your employee’s job 

classification rates, or loss experience rates.  It is your mod without any losses.

Your Controllable Mod, or the portion of the mod that you affect with your losses, is 

determined by your specific loss history and different weighting of large and small claims, 

and claims involving lost time or medicals only.



Risk Management

Workers’ Compensation

Loss Control Initiatives

Milwaukee County Programs & Policies

• Utilize Milwaukee County Transitional Duty Program (AMOP 5.05)

• Utilize Milwaukee County Safety & Health Program (AMOP 5.03)

• Development of Milwaukee County Occupational Health Programs (Respiratory, Hearing Protection &

Bloodborne Pathogens)

• Formalized Accident Investigation Procedures

Milwaukee County Employee Engagement Initiatives

• Promotion of Find It Fix It Program – Safety and Property Issues

• Participation in Joint Safety Committee / VARC

• Total Health Newsletter

Employee Training

• Established OSHA Compliance Training Curriculum for all County employees

• Curriculums built in LMS (Learning Management System)
• Established County OSHA Compliance Training Database

• In-person classes / webinar / hand-outs
• Partnership City of Milwaukee FUSION Center to deliver personal safety in the field and community.

• Focus on Safe Lifting/Back Injury Prevention

• Focus on De-Escalation & Defense Training

• Focus on Slip, Trips and Falls Injury Prevention



A N  I N T R O D U C T I O N  T O

C U L T U R A L  I N T E L L I G E N C E  ( C Q )
T R A I N I N G  F O R  T H E  H U M A N  S E R V I C E S  P R O F E S S I O N

SocialSolutions presents…

THE

CQEXPERIENCE
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division (MCBHD)

Cultural Intelligence Training 

Volume 18-1

5



ofTABLE CONTENTS
S O C I A L  S O L U T I O N S , I N C  - C Q  T R A I N I N G

01
What is CQ and Why 

Does It Matter?

02
Competence vs EQ 

vs Diversity vs CQ

03 Implicit Bias?

A Look Inside 

a CQ Score
04

05

The Impact of 

Your CQ Score on 

You

06

What Does Your CQ 

Score Say About 

You?

What is RECOVERY?

07

How is CQ best applied?08

Capabilities & Sub-

Dimensions

09 Questions - Dismissal



Language

Religion Social Habits

Cuisine Music

What is Culture?
Culture is the characteristics and knowledge of a particular group of people, 

defined by everything from: 

Arts

Kim Ann Zimmermann, Live Science Contributor; http://www.livescience.com/21478-what-is-culture-definition-of-culture.html

Shared patterns of doing, thinking, understanding 

and interacting, learned through socialization

Center for Advance Research on Language Acquisition; www.carla.umn.edu/culture/definitions.html



Culture is 

Represented in a 

Rich and Wide 

Variety of 

Contexts

Racial differences

Work styles

Ethnic

Age span

Social class

Regional differencesSexual Identification

Gender Religion

Political affiliation

Abilities/Disabilities

Culture



What is Cultural Intelligence?
Fundamentally, CQ is a Strategy!

CAPABILITY
Ability, Capacity, Aptitude

ADAPT
to Culture

UNDERSTAND
environments

VALUE
Diversity & Cultural Differences

WORK EFFECTIVELY
In cross-cultural settings

MALLEABLE
Able to be pressed Permanently 

without cracking



Individual Pathway To Cultural Fluency

Cultural Intelligence develops over an

Individual’s Pathway to Cultural Fluency

CQ 
Experience

Social Solutions, Inc.

INDIVIDUAL
CQ 

Assessment

COMMUNITY E-LEARNING

IMPROVED 
OUTCOMES for 

Consumers 

Pathway to Cultural Fluency

CQ’s Role



Assist and Empower 

People to Live More 

Meaningful Lives



What is Your CQ Score?

© 2013 Cultural Intelligence Center

It’s important to make sense of their CQ feedback

Your answers to the survey 

represent a snapshot in time and the frame of mind they had while 

completing the assessment

This assessment has been 

tested and validated with more than 58,000 people across numerous 

contexts, life stages, and cultures 

Goals for feedback session: 

Personal Development

Opportunity to Change Behavior



© 2013 Cultural Intelligence Center

LOW
MODERATE

Worldwide Norms

LOW

Recognize cultural norms 

and begin to accommodate 

for them

Adapt and adjust 

thinking and behavior 

as needed
React to external Stimuli

HIGH

Scores in this range are 

in the bottom 25% of 

worldwide norms 

Scores in this range are in 

the middle 50% of 

worldwide norms 

Scores in this range are 

in the top 25% of the 

worldwide norms 





© 2017 Cultural Intelligence Center  

CQ Drive is your level of interest, drive, and 

motivation to adapt interculturally. 

Individuals with high CQ Drive are motivated 

to learn and adapt to new and diverse 

cultural settings.

CQ Drive:

• Reveals what you feel about an intercultural encounter

• Predicts your capability to persevere when stress and 

disorientation occur in an intercultural situation





© 2017 Cultural Intelligence Center  

CQ Knowledge is your level of understanding about 

how cultures are similar and different.

Individuals with high CQ Knowledge have a rich, 

well-organized understanding of culture and how 

it affects the way people think and behave.

CQ Knowledge:

• Reveals your understanding of cultural differences

• Predicts your cultural knowledge and self-directed learning in the 

midst of an intercultural engagement 



14



© 2017 Cultural Intelligence Center  

CQ Strategy is the degree to which you are mindful, 

aware, and able to plan for multicultural interactions

Individuals with high CQ Strategy use cultural 

understanding to develop plans for new 

intercultural situations. They monitor, analyze, and 

adjust their behaviors to different cultural settings

CQ Strategy:

• How you plan for and interpret an intercultural encounter

• Scores predict the degree to which you accurately anticipate and 

make sense of what’s going on



16



© 2017 Cultural Intelligence Center  

CQ Action is the degree to which you can 

appropriately change your verbal and nonverbal 

actions as well as your speech acts by drawing upon a 

broad repertoire of behaviors and skills 

Individuals with high CQ Action draw upon the other 

three CQ capabilities to translate their motivation, 

understanding, and strategic thinking into action

CQ Action:

• How you actually behave when you’re in an intercultural situation

• Predicts the degree to which you appropriately adapt while not 

over-adapting or compromising yourself or the organization you 

represent



What’s Next?
How do we move from Education…to Application?



CQ Smart Experience - BHD Cultural Intelligence Training Class Schedule:  
Feb-Dec 2018

Class Days, Dates and Start Time Maximum Class Size

February 6 February 8

March 6 March 8

April 10 April 12

May 8 May 10

June 12 June 14

July 10 July 12

August 7 August 9

September 11 September 13

October 16 October 18

November 6 November 8

December 4 December 6

Cultural Intelligence 

Training

2017 -2018 Training  Students Trained

2/23/2017 2/8/2018 370

25 7
7 10

25

15 12



Where are the CQ priority areas that staff and 

management believe should be applied and 

within what timeframe?

How can CQ services be integrated among 

BHD staff and consumers?

How does BHD apply CQ skill sets in its global and 

culture specific programming?

How would you like to see CQ applied to services BHD 

provides?

NS?

What CQ tools and resources are needed for 

the

Population that BHD serves?



Application
How do we master the application of CQ within BHD?

Accountability
How is management accountable for the application of CQ within BHD?

Scope
How broad within BHD will CQ skillsets be expected to be applied?

Sustainability
How do we assure long-term sustainable application & growth of CQ within BHD?

VTHE BIG ISSUES



Survey participants who have taken CQ Experience to 

determine what they might suggest as viable 

applications of CQ within BHD

A Pathway to the Next Step

The most comprehensive answers to many of the issues and questions    

above lie within the experiences and knowledge of the professionals within BHD 

Prepare report and submit findings to 

BHD Executive and Management teams

Explore new directions using information               

gleaned from survey results as foundation for new 

ideas as BHD moves into the new system of care



THE BIG PICTURE:

A Competent Cultural Intelligent System

CONSUMER 1st
Needs of the Consumer are 

Identified & Come First

1

Data Collection
Conduct Ongoing Needs 

Assessment/Data Collection

5

Mission Statement
Create & Manage Mission 

Statements, Definitions, Policies 

& Procedures Reflecting the 

Values & Principles

4

Diverse Staff
Recruit & Retain Diverse 

Staff, Including Training & 

Skill Development

6

Adapted from Isaacs, M., Benjamin, M., et al. (1989-1998). Towards a culturally competent system of care (Vols 1-3). Washington, DC: Georgetown University Child Development Center, National Technical Assistance Center for Children’s Mental Health.

Leadership Commitment
Secure Long-Term 

Commitment from Top 

Leadership & Resources

2

Strategic Plan
Develop & Adhere to a Strategic 

Plan with Meaningful 

Involvement of Key Diverse 

Persons

3



QUESTIONS
?



6







Date: March 16, 2018 
To: Mike Lappen, BHD Administrator, Mary Jo Meyer, DHHS Director, and Tom Lutzow, Chair, Milwaukee 
County Mental Health Board 
From: Joy Tapper 

Tom, Mary Jo and Mike, 

The health system members of the Milwaukee Health Care Partnership (MHCP), and the other behavioral 
health providers participating in the MHCP Behavioral Health Steering Committee, appreciate the efforts 
of the Behavioral Health Division (BHD) and the Mental Health Board (MHB) to outsource inpatient 
behavioral health services for Milwaukee County residents who suffer with severe and persistent mental 
illness and are legally detained under Chapter 51.  We understand that BHD and the MHB have 
completed their due diligence process and that Milwaukee County, under the leadership of Teig Whaley-
Smith and with support from a contract advisory team, is now beginning contract negotiations with 
Universal Health Services as the future inpatient provider. 

As fellow providers involved in the current and future provision of medical, emergency and behavioral 
health care to children and adults who are placed under emergency detention, the health systems are 
very interested in ensuring that the BHD contract supports a coordinated delivery system for this patient 
population, focused on quality, cost-effective and patient-centered care.  The health systems, along with 
BHD and the MHB, also have a shared interest in ensuring that Universal provides adequate and timely 
access to inpatient services and efficient care transitions to prevent treatment delays, avoidable 
admissions, and poor outcomes, as well as clinical or legal risks for any organization.  

As such, the Milwaukee health systems and MHCP staff are interested in providing input to outsourcing 
contract provisions that impact access and care coordination.  Additionally, as leaders of accredited 
hospitals, health system behavioral health leaders are open to lending their expertise as to how BHD and 
the MHB can make certain that Universal maintains the highest standards of patient care and meets all 
regulatory requirements.   

We would appreciate if you would identify the best avenue for providing such input so that together we 
can ensure the design and implementation of a cost-efficient and coordinated system of care for this 
high acuity patient population.  Thank you in advance for your feedback.     

CC:  
Cathy Buck, Dr. Chris Decker, Dr. Jon Lehrmann and Dr. Tom Heinrich, Froedtert/MCW 
Dennis Potts and Pete Carlson, Aurora 
Travis Andersen and Tim Waldoch, Ascension 
Bob Duncan, Amy Herbst, and Tracy Oreter, Children’s 

Attachment A



3200 S. Street 

Milwaukee, WI 53207 

414.344.0447; (Fax) 414.344.0450 

www.namigrm.org 

help@namigrm.org 

April 24, 2018 

Mr. Michael Lappen 

Behavioral Health Division Administrator  

Milwaukee County Behavorial Health Division 

Re:  NAMI Greater Milwaukee Update for Mental Health Board 

Dear Mr. Lappen,  

As the Chair of the Board of Directors of NAMI Greater Milwaukee, I write to update you, our 
valued partner in fulfilling our mission of support, education and advocacy for those affected by 
a mental illness. 

To prepare for hiring our next Executive Director, we implemented a 3-month transition period 
to assess what would be needed from the new leader to further our organization’s 
development.  Early in this transition, the board discovered that financial challenges would have 
greater impact than we had previously anticipated.  The Board has taken full responsibility to 
preserve core services as we work to course correct.  These course corrections have required 
difficult decisions in the short-term, as we restructure for a strong, sustainable NAMI Greater 
Milwaukee for the long-term. 

Despite significant challenge, I’m pleased to update you on the following: 

 Dedicated staff continue to coordinate core programs and services.  Classes and support
groups that serve those living with a mental illness as well their loved ones continue
uninterrupted.

 Telephone support and referral continues through an organized group of staff, and
volunteers with lived experience.

 In Our Own Voice presentations continue to be given as community education to end
stigma.

 Planning and preparation for our annual fundraising Walk is well underway.  Community
support has never been more generous.

With deep gratitude, we recognize our dedicated team of staff and volunteers, Walk captains, 
and community supporters.  We are also grateful for our valued community partners in sectors 
of government, nonprofit, local business, and faith communities.  They have joined us in this 
long view with a shared belief that the NAMI mission is too important to those we serve, and it 
must go on to grow.    

Attachment B

http://www.namigrm.org/
mailto:help@namigrm.org


As an affiliate of the largest grassroots organization on mental illness, we are working closely 
with NAMI Wisconsin to deliver NAMI National and State signature programs that we can 
sustain year after year.  We are fortunate to have the support of the NAMI organization at both 
the national and state level.  Together, they support our unique mission of self-help, connection, 
education, support and advocacy for those living with a mental illness, as well as for those who 
love and care for them. 

Together, we are committed to provide more peer connection, support, learning and recovery.  
Ending the effects of stigma begins in the hearts and minds of those affected and expands to 
educate all communities of the challenges and bravery of recovery. 

We encourage you to call us with your questions and ideas so we may fully address your 
questions or concerns.  Please do join us May 19th at 11 AM at Veterans Park at the NAMI-
Greater Milwaukee Annual Walk.  Register today at: https://www.namigrm.org/nami-walks. 

Very truly yours, 

Patrice A. Baker, Board President 

https://www.namigrm.org/nami-walks


COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: March 8, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Acting Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Mike Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Acting Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 
Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 Professional Services Contract 
Amendments for Pharmacy and Information Technology Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 
(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 
shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 
the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 
BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 
contracts for 2018. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 
Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 
health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Professional Services Contracts 

Pharmacy Systems, Inc.    $1,339,804 
Pharmacy Systems, Inc., provides pharmaceutical services to BHD. 

New Resources Consulting; d.b.a. Clinical Path Consulting, LLC 

New Resources Consulting                               $24,000  
New Resources Consulting is a professional services agreement to provide BHD with a position 
critical to the success of the EMR Optimization project providing oversight of the BHD clinical 
application tools.  This is an amendment to the agreement to extend the end date to 3/30/2018 

7



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: March 8, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyer, Acting Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Mike Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Acting Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 
Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 Purchase-of-Service Contracts with a 
Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health Division for the Provision 
of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 
(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 
shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 
the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 
BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 
contracts for 2018. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 
Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 
health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $223,524 
A request for proposal was issued for the Office of Consumer Affairs – Peer Specialist Program 
and through the selection process Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. is being recommended 
for approval of the funds for this program. The funds are being requested for 2018. 

Our Space, Inc. - $200,000 
A request for proposal was issued for the Peer Run Respite Center and through the selection 
process Our Space, Inc. is being recommended for approval of the funds for this program. The 
funds are being requested for 2018. 

8



2 
 

Fiscal Summary 
 
The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  
 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 
2018 

Amount 

Wisconsin Community 
Services, Inc. New $223,524 

Our Space, Inc. New $200,000 

Total  $423,524 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
Mary Jo Meyers, Acting Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 



2 

to account for the completed transition of the Clinical Informaticist from contract to BHD 
employee. 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Mary Jo Meyers, Acting Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 

New Resources Consulting 

Date New/Amendment 
2017 

Amount 
2018 

Amount 

2017 Original Contract 91,200 

(1/1/2018 – 2/21/2018) Amendment 33,600 

(2/22/2018- 3/30/2018) Amendment 24,000 

Total 91,200 57,600 

Vendor Name New/Amendment 
2018 

Amount 
2019 

Amount 

Pharmacy Systems, Inc. Amendment $394,060 $945,744 

New Resources Consulting Amendment $57,600 - 

Total $451,660 $945,744 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: March 1, 2018 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Acting Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Mike Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Acting Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 
Requesting Authorization to Execute 2018 Fee-for-Service Agreements with a 
Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health Division for the Provision 
of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 
(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 
shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 
the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 
BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 
contracts for 2018. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 
Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 
health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements 

Grateful Girls - $100,000 
This agency provides Behavioral Health and/or Social Services for the Wraparound Milwaukee 
Program serving children/youth and their families. These funds are being requested for 2018. 

MD Therapy - $110,000 
This agency provides youth CCS, Therapy and other services for Wraparound Milwaukee 
Program serving children/youth and their families. The total contract amount will be $338,698. 
These funds are being requested for 2018. 

9



2 

Fiscal Summary 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

Vendor Name 
New/Amendment/ 

Renewal 2018 Amount 

Grateful Girls Renewal $100,000 

MD Therapy Amendment $110,000 

Total $210,000 

Mary Jo Meyers, Acting Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 



1 of 4 

Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, March 29, 2018 - 1:30 P.M. 
Mental Health Complex 

9455 West Watertown Plank Road 
Conference Room 1045 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: Maria Perez and Michael Davis 
EXCUSED: Jon Lehrmann, Walter Lanier, and Robert Curry 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome. 

Chairwoman Perez welcomed everyone to the March 29, 2018, Mental Health Board 
Finance Committee meeting and her first meeting as the Chairperson. 

2. 2019 Preliminary Behavioral Health Division Budget Assumptions. 

The Behavioral Health Division (BHD) continues to be in the early stages of the budget 
process.  Two public listening sessions have been completed, in addition to offering 
unlimited access to submit written budget related comments on the Mental Health Board 
web page.  The majority of comments received recognize the successes of previous 
initiatives with encouragement to maintain and expand efforts proven to be successful.  
Examples include Crisis Assessment Response Teams (CART), Housing First, Crisis 
Resource Centers (CRC), Team Connect, etc. 

There have also been concerns raised surrounding negotiations with Universal Health 
Services (UHS), all of which BHD has addressed through the UHS proposal.  It is 
anticipated the proposal will guide the final contractual negotiations and language of the 
agreement. 

Issues surrounding all monies realized as a result of the closure of Acute Inpatient 
Services being invested back into the community were addressed.  There may be tax levy 
savings achieved that could assist in maintaining and possibly expanding the strong 
continuum of community programming.  However, BHD will still be responsible for funding 
inpatient care for a significant population of individuals who need it and for whom 
Milwaukee County is statutorily responsible.  There is also a financial reality that must be 
faced regarding pension and legacy costs, as well as significant uncertainty in long-term 
Medicaid and Affordable Care Act funding. 

10



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Finance Committee 

March 29, 2018  2 of 4 

While tax levy targets have yet to be received, 2019 Preliminary Budget Assumptions were 
detailed. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 

3.  2017 Financial Results. 
 
2017 financial results have been finalized and the Behavioral Health Division realized a 
surplus of $3.9 million.  Obligations include $1.2 million for the Capital Reserve, $1.1 
million for the Wrap Reserve, and $1.6 million for the General Reserve.  Inpatient Services 
suffered an $8 million deficit, which was made up in Community Services.  Inpatient 
numbers are due to revenue, a low census, and the current payor mix.  Community 
Services’ numbers are generally due to low enrollment in some areas and initiatives that 
have yet to be implemented. 
 
Questions and comments ensued. 
 
For information purposes, the Committee was briefed on statutory language related to 
reserve accounts that states, “Monies in the reserve fund may be used at any time to cover 
deficits in the Milwaukee County Mental Health Budget.  If the amount in the reserve fund 
exceeds $10 million, the amount exceeding $10 million may be used at any time for any 
mental health function, program, or service in Milwaukee County.  Monies in the reserve 
fund may be used only for the purposes described in the paragraph.” 
 

4.  Office of Consumer Affairs and Peer Run Respite 2018 Purchase of Service Contract 
Update. 
 

SEE ITEM 6 FOR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION AND/OR DISCUSSION 
 

5.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee 2018 Professional Services Contracts 
Recommendation. 
 

 Pharmacy Systems, Inc. 

 New Resources Consulting d.b.a. Clinical Path Consulting, LLC 
 
Professional Services Contracts focus on facility-based programming, supports functions 
that are critical to patient care, and are necessary to maintain hospital and crisis services 
licensure.  Background information was provided on services the contracted agencies 
provide, which include pharmacy and information technology services.  Approvals are for a 
2018 Contract Amendments. 
 
The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the 2018 
Professional Services Contract Amendments delineated in the corresponding report to the 
full Board. 
 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Finance Committee 

March 29, 2018  3 of 4 

6.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee 2018 Purchase-of-Service Contracts 
Recommendation. 
 
Purchase-of-Service Contracts for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various program contracts.  Approvals are for 2018 Contracts. 
 
The contracts are cost-reimbursed contracts and are the result of the Request for 
Proposals (RFP) process completed last Fall.  The RFPs were for the Office of Consumer 
Affairs’ Peer Specialist Program and the Peer Run Respite Center.  Both were 
competitively bid and scored.  Wisconsin Community Services, Inc., was awarded a one-
year contract for the Peer Specialist Program, and Our Space, Inc., was awarded a three-
year contract for the Peer Run Respite Center. 
 
The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the 2018 
Purchase-of-Service Contracts delineated in the corresponding report to the full Board. 
 

7.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreements 
Recommendation. 
 
Fee-for-Service Agreements for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various program agreements, which provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support 
services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 
serious emotional disturbances. 
 
The Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the Fee-for-
Service Agreements delineated in the corresponding report to the full Board. 
 

8.  Adjournment. 
 
Chairwoman Perez ordered the meeting adjourned. 
 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 
 
Length of meeting:  1:35 p.m. to 2:10 p.m. 
 
Adjourned, 
 
Jodi Mapp 
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Finance Committee 

March 29, 2018 4 of 4 

The next meeting of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Finance Committee is Thursday, June 7, 2018, at 4:30 p.m. 

PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE HEARD ON 
THE 2019 BUDGET 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board.htm 

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board.htm


Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Finance Committee March 29, 2018 

BHD and the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board have held two public listening sessions for input 
into the 2019 Budget and received budget feedback from the public through the web link below:   

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board/2018-Mental-Health-
Board-Budget.htm   

Additionally, written testimony has been submitted from the Milwaukee County Mental Health Task 
Force and Disability Rights Wisconsin.  Recognizing some of the successes of previous initiatives, the 
testimony encourages BHD to maintain and expand efforts that have been successful like CART, Housing 
First, Crisis Resource Centers (CRC), Team Connect, etc.  A significant list of concerns have been raised 
by the Milwaukee Mental Health Task Force regarding the contract negotiations with Universal Health 
Services (UHS), all of which we believe have been addressed in the UHS proposal, which is anticipated to 
guide the final contractual agreement. 

DRW specifically mentions that BHD should:  “Honor the commitment that every dollar previously used 
to support long-term care or inpatient services will be invested in the community.”  BHD did make 
such a promise regarding the closure of long-term care and Hilltop.  The closures, completed in 2015, 
achieved about $6.9 million in tax levy savings from 2014 to 2016.  It is very difficult to accurately track 
the tax levy associated with individuals who have moved on to other treatment providers, but we can 
say with certainty that a small number of individuals with very significant needs represent about $2 
million in annual spending. The allocation of tax levy in the BHD budget was increased to community 
services from $6.0 million in 2014 to $18.0 million in 2016 - an increase of nearly twice what had been 
saved from the closures over three years.  We are proud of this achievement.  This was not only a 
promise kept, but an area where we significantly exceeded expectations.   

It will not be possible to achieve a “dollar for dollar investment into the community” as a result of the 
closure of Acute Inpatient Services and a contract with UHS.  While we do hope that there are tax levy 
savings achieved in the future as a result of the closure and that those savings will assist BHD to 
maintain and even expand a strong continuum of community programming, BHD will still be responsible 
for funding inpatient care for a significant population of individuals who need it and for whom 
Milwaukee County is statutorily responsible.  We believe UHS will have a much more favorable payer 
mix in their proposed 120 bed facility, which will significantly reduce the cost per patient day for BHD 
funded clients.  Additionally, BHD is making every effort to expand and improve preventative 
interventions and to focus on a collaborative and person centered continuum of care that will reduce 
the need for involuntary inpatient care over time.  There is a financial reality that must be faced 
regarding pension and legacy costs, as well as significant uncertainty in Medicaid and Affordable Care 
Act funding long-term. The closure of the current aging BHD facility is part of the attempt to address 
those fiscal challenges without impacting community services.   

While BHD has not yet received our Tax Levy targets for 2019, we have made some preliminary 
assumptions as we begin to craft the 2019 Budget.  Given the major initiatives underway with the 
acute outsource, the crisis redesign, the development of the community facilities, and the eventual 

Finance Committe Item 2

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board/2018-Mental-Health-Board-Budget.htm
http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board/2018-Mental-Health-Board-Budget.htm


relocation of BHD operations, the overriding assumption for 2019 and 2020 must be that significant 
resources will be directed to a historic transition away from an institutionally based model of care and 
into the community.  BHD will not likely have the luxury to add new initiatives as we have in recent 
years.  Our focus will be on maintaining high quality services through a complicated transition, 
maximizing efficiencies, and effectiveness.  Our preliminary 2019 assumptions: 

• A projected Adult Inpatient capacity of 48 with an average census of 43 or 90% capacity
• A Child and Adolescent Inpatient Service (CAIS) capacity of 10 with an average census of 8

(80% capacity)
• CBRF - Maintain current capacity and continue to develop and explore person-centered

options that meet individual needs
• CCS - Continue to expand capacity
• AODA - Continue to expand services and prevention efforts with grants and other creative

funding in collaboration with community partners and seeking numerous grant funded
opportunities to expand treatment and prevention

• CSP - Maintain current capacity, RFP for new providers, move into fee-for-service
• TCM - Maintain current capacity
• Northside - Finalize partnerships with FQHCs on Northside and Southside.  Repurpose existing

tax levy positions from Day Treatment in the 2018 Budget
• Peer Run Respite - RFP winner established, start-up funds mobilized in 2018.  $400,000.00

already committed to 2019 Budget
• West Allis CART - Up and running April 23, 2018.  $100,000.00 committed to 2019 Budget



Finance Committee Item 3









Chairperson:  Mary Neubauer 
Executive Assistant:  Kiara Abram, 257-7212 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 
QUALITY COMMITTEE 

March 5, 2018 - 10:00 A.M. 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Complex 

Conference Room 1045 

Present: Mary Neubauer, Robert Chayer, Rachel Forman, Brenda Wesley, Ron Diamond (by 
telephone). 

MINUTES 
SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome.  (Chairwoman Neubauer) 

Chairwoman Neubauer encouraged board members to introduce themselves and welcomed 
everyone to the March 5, 2018 meeting.  

Dr. Diamond announced this will be his last Quality Committee Meeting. 

2. 2017 Key Performance Indicator Dashboard & Community Access to Recovery Services 
Quarterly Report.  (Pam Erdman, Quality Manager; Justin Heller, Program Evaluator; Edward 
Warzonek, Quality Assurance Coordinator; Jim Feagles, Integrated Services Coordinator; 
and Dr. Matt Drymalski, Clinical Program Director) 

KPI Dashboard measures and status updates were reviewed with progress noted.  A discussion 
ensued regarding how to continually evolve and report organizational data in a more meaningful 
way. A request for a brief executive summary of the data was suggested. Program services and 
waitlist times were discussed.  A plan to revise the quarterly report format is underway. 

3. BHD Compliments, Complaints, and Grievances Update. (Heidi Ciske-Schmidt, Integrated 
Services Coordinator; Sherrie Bailey-Holland, Client Rights Specialist) 

BHD process for obtaining and addressing client concerns was reviewed.  General data trends 
and types discussed, including rounding interventions to address immediate concerns.  A 
suggestion to incorporate client/patient and/or family focus groups to participate in improvement 
selection was suggested.   

4. Improving Youth Medication Adherence; Wraparound Milwaukee (Pamela Erdman, Quality 
Manager) 

11



Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Quality Committee 

March 05, 2018 2 of 3 

Performance improvement project targeting medication adherence for youth that receive 
medication through the Wraparound Milwaukee Wellness Clinic was discussed.  Rationale, 
procedure and research design reviewed. 

5. PCS Hospital Transfer Waitlist Report; End of Year 2017 (Richard Wright, Program Analyst; 
Dr. Schneider, Chief Medical Officer) 

The average waitlist period per patient has remained consistently under eight hours (7.6), with a 
median wait time for individuals delayed at 4.6 hours.  Further monitoring of individual dispositions 
continues; refer to Figure 14. 2017. 

6. Seclusion and Restraint Reports; End of Year 2017 (Linda Oczus, Chief Nursing Officer) 

Acute adult restraint hourly rate has decreased by 81.8 % from 2016 through end of year 2017 
and below the national average. CAIS restraint hourly rate decreased by 72.7% from 2016 
through end of year 2017, yet still above national average. Additional staff education has had a 
positive impact.  Continued emphasis on prevention and other intervention alternatives are 
prioritized. 

7. Customer Satisfaction/Client Experience 2017 Year-End Data. (Edward Warzonek, Quality 
Assurance Coordinator) 

Survey response rates from the acute hospital were at 33%, significantly above national average. 
Domain rankings and opportunities for improvement were shared as well as customer comments. 
A 31% survey response rate for CAIS was shared as well as domain category comparisons, 
trends and customer comments. 

8. Policy & Procedure Update. (Lynn Gram, Safety Officer) 

The completion goal of 90 percent for outstanding policies has been exceeded. An updated March 
report was distributed. 

9. Next Scheduled Meeting Date. 

 June 4, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

10.  Adjournment. 

Chairwoman Neubauer ordered the meeting adjourned. 



Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

Quality Committee 

March 05, 2018 3 of 3 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with the 
audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  10:00 a.m. to 12:13 p.m. 

 The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Quality
Committee is Monday, June 4, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 
http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board.htm 

http://county.milwaukee.gov/BehavioralHealthDivi7762/Mental-Health-Board.htm


Quality Committee Item 2







Quality Committee Item 3





Quality Committee Item 4







Quality Committee Item 5

































Quality Committee Item 6





















Quality Committee Item 7

















































Quality Committee Item 8



12








	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12



